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INTRODUCTION

This guide is the result of a collaboration by Labor & Employment Law Committee of the Young Lawyers Section of the Chicago Bar Association, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Illinois Department of Human Rights, the Cook County Commission on Human Rights, and the Chicago Commission on Human Relations.  The guide is designed to provide direction about the jurisdiction and procedures of government agencies which enforce employment discrimination laws in the Chicago area.  The jurisdictional information in this guide is not, however, a guarantee of coverage.  Certain exceptions and limitations may apply.

For further information, please contact each agency or refer to the source documents listed in the reference section of this guide.

Key to abbreviations:

“EEOC” = Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

“T VII” = Title VII of the Civil Rights Act

“ADA” = Americans with Disabilities Act

“ADEA” = Age Discrimination in Employment Act

“EPA” = Equal Pay Act

“CRA” = Civil Rights Act of 1991

“Rehab Act” = Rehabilitation Act of 1973

“IDHR” = Illinois Department of Human Rights

“IHRC” = Illinois Human Rights Commission

“IHRA” = Illinois Human Rights Act

“County” = Cook County Commission on Human Rights

“County Ordinance” = Cook County Human Rights Ordinance

“Chicago” = Chicago Commission on Human Relations

“Chicago Ordinance” = Chicago Human Rights Ordinance

THE AGENCIES

EEOC

The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (Title VII), Titles I and V of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), the Equal Pay Act of 1963 (EPA), the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended (ADEA), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Civil Rights Act of 1991, as amended (CRA), which prohibit discrimination in the area of employment.

IDHR/IHRC

The Illinois Department of Human Rights (IDHR) and the Illinois Human Rights Commission (IHRC) enforce the Illinois Human Rights Act (IHRA), 775 ILCS 5/1‑101 et seq.  IDHR investigates and conciliates charges of discrimination, and IHRC conducts hearings on complaints of discrimination.  The IHRA prohibits discrimination in employment, financial credit, real estate transactions, sexual harassment in higher education and public accommodations.  For more information on IDHR’s coverage of housing discrimination, contact IDHR.

County

The Cook County Commission on Human Rights (County) enforces the Cook County Human Rights Ordinance (County Ordinance), Ordinance §93‑0‑13 (March 16, 1993), which prohibits discrimination in employment, public accommodations, credit and bonding transactions, Cook County services and Cook County contracts.  The County also covers discrimination in housing.  For more information on the County’s coverage of housing discrimination, contact the County.

Chicago

The Chicago Commission on Human Relations (Chicago) enforces the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance (Chicago Municipal Code) §2‑160‑010 et seq., which prohibits discrimination in employment, credit and bonding transactions, and public accommodations.  Chicago also prohibits discrimination in housing under the Chicago Fair Housing Ordinance, §5‑08‑010 et seq.  Chicago’s powers derive from the Chicago Commission on Human Relations Enabling Ordinance, §2‑120‑480 et seq.  For more information on Chicago’s coverage of housing discrimination, contact Chicago.

PROTECTED CLASSES

The following table indicates by agency and by law the classes protected from employment discrimination.


EEOC
IDHR
County
City

Protected Classes
T VII

ADA
EPA
ADEA
IHRA
County
City

Race
X



X
X
X

Color
X



X
X
X

Religion
X



X
X
X

Sex

X

X

X
X
X

National Origin
X



X
X
X

Ancestry

X



X
X
X

Age



X
X
X
X

Marital Status




X
X
X

Disability

X


X
X
X

Parental Status





X
X

Sexual Orientation





X
X

Gender Identity





X
X

Source of Income





X
X

Military Discharge Status




X
X
X

Military Status




X



Housing Status





X
X

Citizenship Status




X



Arrest Record




X
X


PERSONS/ENTITIES COVERED

EEOC

The EEOC has jurisdiction over employment agencies, labor organizations, apprenticeship/ training programs, and public and private employers with at least 15 employees in cases of discrimination on the bases of race, color, religion, sex, and national origin under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act and disability under Titles I and V of the Americans with Disabilities Act; over employment agencies, labor organizations and employers with at least 20 employees in cases of age discrimination under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act; and over employers with at least one employee or former employee when a predecessor’s compensation or a co-worker’s compensation is the basis of comparison in cases of sex-based wage discrimination under the Equal Pay Act.  There are certain exemptions, please consult the agency for further information.

IDHR/IHRC

IDHR has jurisdiction over employment agencies, labor organizations, public employers of any size and employers who have at least 15 employees in Illinois for all employment discrimination except on the basis of handicap, retaliation, aiding/abetting, coercion, willful interference, sexual harassment and in claims against public contractors, in which cases IDHR has jurisdiction over employers with at least one employee [IHRA, §2‑101(B)].  Sexual harassment in employment claims may also be brought against individuals.  Specific limited exemptions from coverage are found at IHRA, §2‑104, for bona fide qualifications, veterans, unfavorable discharge from military service, ability tests, merited retirement systems, training and apprenticeship programs, police and firefighter retirement and appointment, and citizenship status.  An exemption for religious organizations is included under the definition of “employer” [IHRA, §2‑101(B)(2)].

County

For all cases of employment discrimination, County has jurisdiction over employment agencies, labor organizations and all employers, regardless of size, with their principal place of business in Cook County or doing business in Cook County [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. III (B)(2)‑(3)].  County covers employees, applicants, volunteers and participants in training or apprenticeship programs [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. II(D) and (F)].  The federal, state and municipal governments and Indian tribes or corporations are exempt from coverage as employers [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. II(E)(2)].  Also exempt are religious organizations giving preference in employment to individuals of a particular religion to help carry out the religious activities of such organization [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. III(C)(4)].

Chicago

Chicago has jurisdiction over employment agencies, labor organizations (in some situations) and all employers, regardless of size, in cases of employment discrimination [Ord. §2‑160‑030, 2‑160‑040 and see Reg. 100 (11) and (24)].  Chicago has no jurisdiction over federal employers or departments of State government.  Certain decisions of religious organizations are exempt [§2‑160‑080].

ADDITIONAL CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATIONS

The following table identifies the civil rights violations, in addition to employment discrimination, covered by each agency and law.


EEOC
IDHR
County
City

Violations
T VII
ADA
EPA
ADEA
IHRA
County
City

Retaliation
X
X
X
X
X
X
*X

Aiding/Abetting




X
X


Willful Interference




X
X


*Unlike the other agencies’ coverage, retaliation is only prohibited by the Chicago Ordinance against a complainant, witnesses and others participating in a complaint filed with Chicago.  The other agencies also prohibit persons from retaliating against a person who has opposed what s/he reasonably and in good faith believed to be an unlawful employment practice even if no charge was filed.

filing deadlines

EEOC

Charges of discrimination which are brought under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, Title I of the ADA, or the ADEA must be filed with EEOC within 300 days of the date of the alleged violation.  Charges filed under the Equal Pay Act and the ADEA must be brought within 2 years of the date of harm; however EEOC will investigate only those charges brought within 300 days of the alleged harm.

IDHR/IHRC

Charges must be filed with IDHR within 180 days of the date of the alleged violation [§7A‑102(A)(1)].

County

Complaints must be filed with County within 180 days of the date of the alleged violation [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(1)(a) and Rule 420.100(A)].  For any continuing violation, the complaint may be filed within 180 days after the last day of the violation.

Chicago

Complaints must be filed with Chicago within 180 days of the date of the alleged violation [Ord. §2‑120‑510(e)].  For any continuing violation, the complaint must be filed within 180 days after the last day of the violation [Reg. 210.120(a)].

GEOGRAPHIC REQUirEMENTS

EEOC

With limited exceptions, the EEOC has jurisdiction over United States companies with facilities within and outside the United States and over foreign companies with facilities in the United States.  The Chicago District Office of EEOC has jurisdiction over employers located in all of the state of Illinois with the exception of 16 counties in the southwestern portion of the state.  Employers in those 16 counties are covered by the St. Louis District Office of EEOC.

IDHR/IHRC

IHRA covers employment conduct within Illinois as provided and defined in [§2‑101].

County

County Ordinance covers employment conduct if the employment is or would be in whole or in part in Cook County or the act of discrimination takes place in Cook County [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. III (A)].

Chicago

Chicago Ordinance covers conduct which has occurred within the City of Chicago [Ord. §2‑160‑010 and Reg. 210.110].

ChARGE FILING AND INTAKE

EEOC

Charges of violations of the federal equal employment opportunity laws may be filed with the EEOC by or on behalf of a person claiming to be aggrieved.  Persons wishing to file charges of unlawful discrimination with EEOC are encouraged to file in person, however, charges may be accepted by mail.  Charges are considered filed when EEOC receives, either in person or by mail, a signed written statement precise enough to identify the parties and to generally describe the action or practices complained of including relevant dates of harm.  Within ten days of filing, EEOC serves the respondent a copy or other notice of the charge by mail or in person.  The respondent is not required to file a response to a charge within a specified time limit although requests for a position statement or other information within 30 days of receiving notice is a common practice.  The EEOC has subpoena power to compel production of evidence or testimony in response to charges should respondents not comply voluntarily.

IDHR/IHRC

Persons claiming to be aggrieved who wish to file charges of unlawful discrimination with IDHR should do so in person or by mail.  IDHR prefers to have its intake staff prepare a charge after interviewing the complaining party in person, but IDHR will accept information by mail to prepare a charge.  In order for a perfected charge to be considered filed, it must be written; signed under oath or affirmation; and detailed enough to provide the time, place and enough facts to substantially apprise any party of an alleged violation [IHRA, §7A‑102(A)(2)].  Within ten days of the filing of a charge, IDHR sends the respondent notice of the charge and usually requests it to answer a questionnaire.  Respondents are required to file a verified response to a charge within 60 days of receipt of notice of the charge [IHRA, §7A‑102(B)].  Complainants may file a reply within 30 days of receipt of Respondent’s response [IHRA, §7A‑102(B)].

County

Persons claiming to be aggrieved who wish to file charges of unlawful discrimination with County may do so in person, by mail or by private messenger service within 180 days of the alleged violation [Rule 420.100(B)].  County prefers to have its intake staff prepare a complaint after interviewing the complaining party in person, but County will accept mail receipt of information for the purpose of preparing a complaint and will accept a complaint mailed in or delivered by messenger which has been prepared by Commission staff or by the complaining party.  The complaint is considered filed with County when a verified complaint form, containing enough information to substantially apprise any party of the date, place and facts regarding an alleged violation of County Ordinance is received by County [Rules 420.100(B) and 420.105].  County may reject any complaint that fails to set forth sufficient evidence to state a prima facie case of a violation of the County Ordinance [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(1)(b)].  Within 10 days of the filing of a complaint, County sends a copy of the complaint to the respondent [Rule 420.130].  Respondents are required to file a verified response statement with County within 30 days of receipt of the complaint [Rule 420.165].

Chicago

Persons wishing to file a complaint of unlawful discrimination with Chicago no longer must do so in person; provisions now exist for filing by mail or facsimile [Reg. 210.120(b)].  A complaint may be prepared by the complaining party but it must be signed under oath and contain enough information to substantially apprise any party of the date, place and facts regarding an alleged violation of the Chicago [Reg. 210.120].  Notarization is no longer required.  Within 10 days of the filing of a complaint, Chicago sends a Respondent Notification to each respondent [Ord. §2‑120‑510(e) and Reg. 210.140].  Respondent are to file and serve a Verified Response and file a response to the Commission’s Request for Documents and Information within 30 days of the date the Respondent Notification is mailed [Regs. 210.220 and 220.110].  Failure to file and serve that material may result in a default judgment or the taking of a “negative inference” that the outstanding material does not support the respondent.  [Regs. 215.200 and 215.300].

WORKSHARING AND REFERRAL AGREEMENTS

EEOC

EEOC and IDHR have a contractual Worksharing Agreement.  Under this Worksharing Agreement, when a person files a charge with IDHR, it is automatically cross-filed (dual-filed) with EEOC.  In addition, when EEOC determines that identical charges have been filed with both agencies alleging essentially the same bases and same dates of harm, EEOC administratively closes the charge filed with its office if IDHR has commenced an investigation, and defers the investigation to IDHR.  When a charge is cross-filed (dual-filed), EEOC defers to IDHR, considering the charge pending until IDHR completes its investigation.  Only when all administrative actions and recourse have been finalized can IDHR submit a charge as a final action to EEOC.  When such notice of closure is received, EEOC may conduct reviews at either of two levels:  the Substantial Weight Review (SWR) level or the Certified Acceptance Review level.  The SWR is conducted to discern whether EEOC concurs with IDHR’s investigative outcome.  If EEOC concurs with the outcome, it closes the charge and notifies the appropriate parties of the closure.  Certified Acceptance Reviews are routine in that they do not receive substantial scrutiny.

Under the Worksharing Agreement, a cross-filed (dual-filed) charge preserves the federal rights of the parties.  If EEOC has deferred a charge to IDHR, a charging party may still request a Notice of Right-to-Sue from EEOC in accordance with EEOC’s regulations and procedural guidelines.  EEOC notifies IDHR and the particular employer of the request.  IDHR may upon receiving notice of a federal court action administratively close the investigation of the charge.  If EEOC issues a Notice of Right-to-Sue, the charging party is told that EEOC’s processing of the cross-filed (dual-filed) charge has been terminated, unless EEOC indicates in serving of the Notice of Right-to-Sue that it will continue to investigate.

If a charge is filed directly with EEOC, that charge is not dual-filed with any other agency.  Pursuant to EEOC’s procedural regulations, a copy of that charge is sent to IDHR, but it is not docketed with IDHR, and IDHR does not play a role in the investigation.  Under the Worksharing Agreement, IDHR waives its right to assert jurisdiction over charges filed with EEOC.

Concurrent jurisdiction may exist among the EEOC, IDHR, County and/or Chicago in cases of employment discrimination.

IDHR/IHRC

Apart from the worksharing agreement with EEOC discussed above, IDHR, County and Chicago have agreed to offer information at intake to charging parties about jurisdictional differences.  In cases where charges allege discrimination based on a number of protected classes where IDHR does not have jurisdiction over every allegation, IDHR will inform the charging party that County and/or Chicago may cover all the issues raised and can thus handle the charge completely.  IDHR will continue its investigation of subject matter over which it has jurisdiction.

Concurrent jurisdiction may exist between EEOC and IDHR in cases of employment discrimination, and among IDHR, County and/or Chicago in cases of employment, public accommodations, and credit transaction discrimination.

County

Apart from the deferral agreement with the EEOC described above, Article XII of the County Ordinance provides for its applicability in all areas of Cook County unless (1) the County Ordinance conflicts with an ordinance of a municipality as provided in Article VII, § 6(c) of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 or (2) a municipal ordinance regulates conduct which is prohibited under the County Ordinance and provides remedies.  In the first instance, the municipal ordinance will prevail within its jurisdiction.  In the second instance, the County Ordinance will not apply within that municipal jurisdiction with respect to such conduct.  In all other circumstances, the County Ordinance is enforceable within the municipal jurisdiction to the extent permitted under the Illinois Constitution.

In accordance with Article XII and because the County and City Human Rights Ordinances are substantially similar and provide substantially similar remedies, County and Chicago have developed an agreement about the relationship between the County Ordinance and the Chicago Ordinance.  As a general rule, unless the complaints are based on housing status, retaliation in housing, or aiding and abetting violations or involve Cook County government or Cook County employees, complaints of discriminatory acts occurring in the City of Chicago should be filed with Chicago.  Some additional exceptions to this general rule may apply.

In addition to its agreement with Chicago and EEOC, County has the discretion to defer its investigation of a complaint when the same, or a substantially similar, complaint of discrimination has been filed with another administrative agency.  Factors which County considers in evaluating the deferral of a timely filed complaint include but are not limited to:  (1) conservation of administrative resources; (2) the Complainant’s right to a timely investigation; (3) minimization of the Respondent’s burden; (4) the procedural or investigative status of charges/complaints filed with the other administrative agency as evidenced by the completion of document exchange, witness interviews, response to questionnaires, and/or the holding of fact finding conferences; and (5) backlog of the administrative agency [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(2)(b) and Rule 440.105].

Except as specified above, the County receives and investigates all other complaints of discrimination over which it has jurisdiction, even when that jurisdiction may be concurrent with another agency.

Chicago

As a general rule, Chicago does not defer its investigation of complaints.  Pursuant to the explanation of the relationship between the City and County Ordinances, however, Chicago will not accept complaints of discrimination involving Cook County government or Cook County employees.  See County section above.  These complaints must be filed with County.  

Chicago now has an evidence-sharing and deferral agreement with the EEOC covering substantially similar claims filed at both the EEOC and Chicago.  It does not cover cases filed at the IDHR.  The evidence-sharing and deferral agreement does not cause a complaint filed with one agency to be filed at the other, nor does either agency accept the other’s determinations.  Respondents must file and serve a response with Chicago and the EEOC may accept a copy of said response in satisfaction of its own requirements.  Respondents should contact the EEOC on a case by case basis to determine whether a Chicago response will satisfy EEOC requirements.  

If substantially similar and filed with both agencies, one agency will defer action on a given case while the other proceeds.  Where partial similarities exist, the agencies may attempt to work jointly.  Once the processing agency completes its investigation, it notifies the deferring agency of the result.  At that point, the deferring agency may review the evidence obtained by the processing agency before making its own, independent decision.  If an EEOC charging party files a lawsuit in federal court, Chicago may dismiss its parallel case or stay its proceedings.  

Chicago has an evidence-sharing agreement with the IDHR covering cases filed against the Chicago Board of Education.  Generally, parallel-filed cases will first be investigated by the IDHR.  

INVESTIGATION, SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE AND REASONABLE
CAUSE DETERMINATIONS

EEOC

Once a charge is filed, EEOC will assess and classify the charge pursuant to its priority charge handling procedures.  Charges will be assessed as either “A”, i.e., investigation will probably result in a reasonable cause finding; “B”, i.e., those requiring additional investigation to determine whether they should be recatergorized as “A” or “C”; or “C”, i.e., those which will be dismissed without further investigation.  There is no minimum or maximum time limit for completing an EEOC investigation.  During the course of any investigation, the EEOC may take any or all of the following actions:  (1) interview witnesses; (2) request company documents; (3) issue subpoenas if a respondent or other parties are uncooperative; and (4) seek temporary or preliminary relief to maintain the status quo pending the final disposition of a complaint.  In addition to EEOC, aggrieved parties may petition for temporary or preliminary relief.

At the end of an investigation, the EEOC may issue:  (1) Form 161 Dismissal and Notice of Right to Sue indicating that the information obtained during the investigation did not establish a violation(s) of the statute(s); or (2) notice of a determination that there is reasonable cause (“reasonable cause determination”) to believe that a violation of the statutes has occurred.  In the case of a no-cause determination, the Form 161 will inform the aggrieved party that s/he has the right to file a lawsuit (“notice of right to sue”) within 90 days of receipt of the letter.  Either party may make a request for reconsideration appealing a dismissal or reasonable cause determination by writing to the EEOC District Director; however, there is no formal statutory or regulatory right to an appeal.

Prior to or before completing an investigation, a charge may be withdrawn by the Complainant or dismissed for lack of jurisdiction, lack of cooperation, or other administrative reasons.

IDHR/IHRC

After the respondent to the charge has been notified, IDHR conducts a full investigation of the charge allegations [IHRA, §7A‑102(C)(1)].  If IDHR has not dismissed a charge or filed a complaint with IHRC within 365 days, the charging party may file a complaint with IHRC from day 365 to day 395 of the charge’s filing.  [IHRA, §7A‑102(G)(2)].  Fact-finding conferences are convened for most investigations [IHRA, §7A‑102(C)(4)].  During the course of an investigation, IDHR may also request the IHRC to issue a subpoena to facilitate its investigation [IHRA, §8‑104], seek temporary relief pending final disposition of a charge [IHRA, §7A‑104 (A)] or petition for expedited proceedings [IHRA, §7A‑104 (B)].

At the conclusion of its investigation, IDHR serves the parties with an investigation report which documents the evidence and findings of IDHR and has (1) notice of dismissal that there is a lack of substantial evidence that a violation of IHRA has occurred or there is a lack of jurisdiction if the matter raised is not covered by IHRA, or (2) notice that there is substantial evidence that a violation of IHRA has occurred.  If a charge is dismissed, the complainant may file a Request for Review appealing the dismissal with the Chief Legal Counsel of IDHR within 30 days of receipt of the dismissal notice [IHRA, §7A‑102 (D)].

County

Once a complaint is filed with County, County commences an investigation to determine whether or not there is substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art X (B)(2)(a)].  This investigation is conducted by a neutral fact-finding investigator who is a member of Commission staff.  County has 180 days to complete its investigation and make an evidence determination unless meeting such a deadline is impracticable.  The 180 day time period is not jurisdictional [Rule 440.100].  During the course of an investigation, County may take any or all of the following actions:  (1) convene a fact-finding or evidentiary conference [Rule 440.110]; (2) issue subpoenas in order to obtain relevant evidence [Ord. 93‑0‑013, Art. X (B)(2)(d)]; (3) seek temporary or preliminary relief to maintain the status quo pending the final disposition of a complaint [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(2)(e)]; or (4) attempt to settle or adjust any complaint by conciliation [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(2)(c)].

At the conclusion of its investigation, County makes and issues an evidence determination to the parties.  This determination includes:  (1) an order of dismissal if there is a lack of substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred [Rule 440.120(B)]; or (2) an order finding substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred [Rule 440.120(C)].  Within 30 days of receipt of the County order to dismiss a complaint, either party may file a Request for Reconsideration with County [Rule 780.100(A)].

Prior to completing an investigation, a complaint may be withdrawn by the Complainant or dismissed for lack of jurisdiction, lack of cooperation, or other administrative reasons.

Chicago

Once a complaint is filed with Chicago, Chicago commences an investigation to determine whether or not there is substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred.  Chicago has 180 days to complete its investigation, unless meeting that deadline is impracticable.  A determination as to the existence of substantial evidence is to be made within 30 days of the completion of an investigation [Ord. §2‑120‑510(f)].  During the course of an investigation, Chicago may use its subpoena power if a respondent is uncooperative [Ord. §2‑120‑510(k) and Reg. 220.210], and it may convene a fact-finding conference to help clarify a disputed issue of fact [Reg. 225.100].  If a complainant fails to cooperate as required, the Commission may dismiss his/her case [Reg. 235.100].  If a respondent fails to cooperate as required, the Commission may enter a default judgment sending the case to Administrative Hearing [Reg. 215.200].  If either party fails to cooperate in part, the Commission may take a negative inference that the outstanding information does not support the party’s position [Reg. 215.300].

At the conclusion of its investigation, Chicago makes and issues a determination to the parties.  This determination will include (l) an order of dismissal if there is a lack of substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred and/or (2) an order finding substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance has occurred [Ord. §2‑120‑510(1) and Regs. 220.330].  Within 30 days of receipt of a Chicago order finding no substantial evidence, the complainant may file a Request for Review with the Chicago [Reg. 250.110].  If Chicago makes a determination that there is substantial evidence that a violation of the Ordinance occurred, within 10 days (unless impracticable) it will send the parties notice scheduling a conciliation conference [Reg. 220.330].

CONCILIATION

EEOC

If an EEOC investigation results in a reasonable cause determination, EEOC will invite the parties to conciliate.  If the parties do come together to attempt conciliation, EEOC seeks to remedy the discrimination found.  If, during the course of its investigation, EEOC determines that individuals other than the charging party have been aggrieved by an unlawful employment practice of a respondent, the EEOC will seek to conciliate for all aggrieved parties.  If conciliation efforts fail, EEOC considers initiating a civil suit in federal court.  If EEOC decides not to file suit, unrepresented aggrieved parties are referred to private attorneys who may file on their behalf.  Complainants, of course, are able to proceed pro se, if desired and to request appointment of an attorney by the court, if able to meet financial hardship requirements.  The EEOC is generally the plaintiff, not the Complainant’s attorney, in federal court suits of employment discrimination, but it seeks relief for the Complainant.  The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure govern discovery during federal court suits initiated by the EEOC.

IDHR/IHRC

In cases where IDHR has made a determination of substantial evidence, IDHR attorneys attempt to conciliate the charge [IHRA, §§7A‑102(D)(2)(b) and (E)].  IDHR’s Legal Division acts as a neutral conciliator, informing the parties of potential damages/relief, or, if the parties agree, the charge will be transferred to the IDHR’s Mediation Unit for a formal mediation conference.  The parties may engage in the private settlement of cases; however, with private settlements, IDHR does not assume enforcement responsibilities if the parties fail to perform.  If conciliation fails, IDHR files a complaint with IHRC on behalf of the complainant, which initiates the administrative hearing process [IHRA, §7A‑102(F)].  IDHR is not a party to the complaint and the responsibility for pursuing the matter at hearing before IHRC rests with the complainant.

County

County may attempt to settle or adjust any complaint by conciliation at any time the complaint is pending [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (B)(2)(c)].  Conciliation Conferences are conducted by experienced mediators, who are either on contract with the Commission or members of the Commission staff.  County does not require full relief to approve a settlement If, after a substantial evidence determination, conciliation is attempted and fails, the administrative hearing process is initiated [Rule 440.145 (B)].

Chicago

In cases where Chicago has made a finding of substantial evidence, Chicago holds a formal and free conciliation conference, conducted by mediators who are attorneys on contract with Chicago.  The parties’ attendance at the Conciliation Conference is mandatory [Ord. §2‑120‑510 & Reg. 230.110].  Chicago does not require full relief to approve a settlement.  Rather, compromise by both sides is encouraged [Reg. 230.130].  If conciliation fails, the administrative hearing process is initiated [Reg. 240.110].  Chicago also attempts to settle cases during the investigation stage [Reg. 230.100].

HEARING PROCESS

EEOC

The EEOC conducts administrative hearings only in cases of federal sector employment discrimination.

IDHR/IHRC

Full evidentiary administrative hearings, conducted by Administrative Law Judges (ALJ) who are employed by IHRC, are commenced by the filing of a complaint with the IHRC [IHRA, §8A‑102].  Complaints are filed with IHRC by IDHR Legal Division attorneys if conciliation efforts fail.  Aggrieved parties may file their own complaint between the 365th and 395th days from the filing date of the charge if the investigation has not yet been completed [IHRA, §7A‑102(G)(2)].  IDHR is not a party to non-housing complaints filed before IHRC.

Discovery, and other aspects of the administrative hearing process, is governed by IHRC procedural rules [56 Ill. Admin. Code Ch. XI, §5300, et seq.].  Access to non-confidential parts of IDHR investigation files is permitted by the parties to the charge after notice of dismissal or substantial evidence is served under IDHR rules [56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. X, §926.210].

The ALJ issues a recommended order and decision after a hearing has been completed [IHRA, §8A‑102(I)].  Parties have 30 days from receipt of the ALJ’s recommended order to file exceptions with IHRC and have 21 days thereafter to file responses to the exceptions with IHRC [IHRA, §8A‑103(A) and (B)].  After reviewing the ALJ’s findings and recommended order, IHRC issues a final order and decision.  Within 30 days of receipt of the IHRC decision, either party may request a petition for rehearing of the final order before the full commission [IHRA, §8A‑103(F)].  Within 35 days of the service date of a final order, any party may file an appeal to the Illinois Appellate Court [IHRA, §8‑111].

Administrative decisions by IHRC are not binding for EEOC, County or Chicago.

County

In cases where substantial evidence has been found, if there is no conciliation or if conciliation efforts fail, County schedules an administrative hearing on a complaint [Rule 460.100].  Within 90 days of a substantial evidence determination or after efforts to conciliate a complaint have terminated, an impartial hearing on the complaint is commenced by a hearing officer who is duly licensed to practice law in Illinois, who has extensive experience in discrimination law and who has arbitration or hearing officer experience.  County is not a party in the hearing.

Discovery during the administrative hearing process is limited to the following:  document requests, requests for admissions, and no more than 21 interrogatories.  The agreement of all parties or an order from the Hearing Officer is needed for any additional discovery, such as depositions [Rule 460.145].  Access by parties to County files is permissible at any time after County has issued a substantial evidence determination when County has received at least 48 hours notice of the parties’ intent to inspect a file.  Access to investigation documents which reflect County “work product” (mental impressions, internal memoranda, deliberative process, etc.), however, is not permitted at any time [Rule 440.135].

Prior to the commencement of an administrative hearing, a pre-hearing meeting may be scheduled and conducted by the Hearing Officer.  Attendance of the parties or their representatives at the Pre-Hearing Meeting is mandatory, as is a Pre-Hearing Memorandum unless the Hearing Officer decides to waive the preparation thereof [Rules 460.135 and 460.140].

Within 60 days from the conclusion of an Administrative Hearing or within 60 days from the submission of the last of any post-hearing briefs ordered by the Hearing Officer, the Hearing Officer submits to the parties and files with the Commission his/her initial proposed decision, which includes findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendations for relief.  The parties have 21 days to file objections to the initial proposed decision and have 14 days thereafter to file responses to the objections.  Within 21 days of receipt of the last response or reply generated from the objections, the Hearing Officer will submit a final proposed decision to the Human Rights Commissioners, along with the initial proposed decision and all of the parties’ objections, responses and replies [Rule 470.100].  The Commissioners may accept, reject or modify the proposed decision or remand it for further hearings.  Unless remanded, the Commissioners issue a final decision within 60 days from receipt of the Hearing Officer’s final proposed decision [Rule 470.105].  Any party may file a Request for Reconsideration with County within 30 days of receipt of the decision [Rule 480.100 (c)].  Either party may appeal a final order of County to the Circuit Court of Cook County by a writ of certiorari [Rule 480.115].  If either party fails to comply with a final order, the Commission shall request that the State’s Attorney of Cook County seek judicial enforcement of the order.

Chicago

Within 90 days of a substantial evidence determination, and if conciliation efforts fails, complaints are assigned to a Hearing Officer who is to conduct an Administrative Hearing no more than 180 days from the date s/he has been assigned the complaint (unless impracticable) [Ord. §2‑120‑510(g) & Regs. 100(3), 240.110 and 240.391].  The Hearing Officer is a licensed attorney on contract with Chicago who has extensive experience in the field of discrimination law.  Chicago is not a party in the Hearing.

Discovery during the Administrative Hearing process is limited to the following:  document requests and lists of witnesses as a matter of right; depositions, interrogatories and other elements of discovery when the parties agree or when the Hearing Officer allows [Regs. 240.407, 240.414 and 240.435].  Access to Chicago investigation files is permissible at any time after a substantial evidence determination has been made.  Access to investigation documents which reflect the Chicago “work product,” however, is not permitted at any time [Reg. 220.410].  The record of the Administrative Hearing is open to the public.  [Reg. 240.510].

Prior to the Administrative Hearing, a pre-hearing conference is scheduled and conducted by the Hearing Officer; status conferences are also permitted.  [Reg. 240.120].  Attendance of the parties or their representatives is mandatory, as is a pre-hearing memorandum unless the Hearing Officer decides to waive the preparation thereof [Reg. 240.130].

Within 60 days from the later of the last day of the Administrative Hearing or filing of post-hearing briefs, the Hearing Officer submits to Chicago and the parties a recommended order for appropriate relief, including written findings of fact and conclusions of law and recommendations of relief, if applicable.  Parties have 30 days from receipt of the recommended order to file objections and have 21 days thereafter to file responses to the other parties’ objections.  Within 30 days of receipt of the last objection or response, the Hearing Officer submits a final recommended order to the parties and Chicago’s Board of Commissioners [Reg. 240.610].  Within 60 days of receipt of the Hearing Officer’s recommendation, the Chicago Board of Commissioners adopts, rejects, modifies or remands all or part of the Hearing Officer’s recommendations and promptly issues, and causes to be served on all parties, a final written order reflecting the findings of fact, conclusions of law and relief (if any) [Reg. 240.620].  Either party may appeal a final order of the Chicago to the Chancery Court of the Circuit Court of Cook County by a writ of certiorari [Regs. 100(14) and 250.150].  If either party is found to have failed to comply with a Final Order, the Commission shall request that the Office of the Corporation Counsel seek judicial enforcement of that Order [Regs. 250.210 & 250.220].

private right of action

EEOC

Within 90 days of receipt of Notice of a Right to Sue, an aggrieved party may bring a private civil suit in any court of competent jurisdiction.  After 180 days from the date of filing a charge with EEOC, EEOC will issue a notice of right to sue to all parties when a person claiming to be aggrieved requests, in writing, such notice.  If EEOC determines that it is unlikely that it will complete its investigation within 180 days of the date of filing, EEOC may issue a notice of right to sue earlier if a person claiming to be aggrieved requests, in writing, such notice.  Notice of a Right to Sue may also be issued after dismissal of the charge or after failure of conciliation efforts where the EEOC has not filed a civil action.

Access to EEOC files is limited to requests under the Freedom of Information Act or under Section 83 of EEOC’s Compliance Manual.  Certain limitations to disclosure apply to both FOIA and Section 83 requests.  For example, EEOC does not disclose to complainants charges filed by others against the same employer nor does EEOC disclose to employers other charges filed by the same complainant.  Under Section 83, access to files is granted to complainants during the 90 day right to sue period and to both complainants and respondents after a lawsuit is filed.

IDHR

No private right of action exists in cases of non-housing discrimination, except for emergency injunctive relief, if certified by the IDHR, and enforcement actions for orders of relief issued by IHRC [IHRA, §§7A‑104, 8‑111(B) and 10‑102(A)].

County

According to the terms of the County Ordinance, at two phases of the County process (subsequent to a timely filed complaint and prior to evidence finding or subsequent to a finding of substantial evidence) the complainant may pursue an individual right of action, which allows him or her to proceed directly before a court of general jurisdiction and thus bypass the administrative process [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (D)].  Before County has made an evidence determination, the complainant may ask County for authorization to proceed by filing a civil action in a court of general jurisdiction.  In exercising its discretion in determining whether to grant or deny the request, the Commission will consider a range of factors including, but not limited to:  how long it will take the Commission to complete an investigation, whether there are jurisdictional deficiencies in the complaint filed with the Commission, whether the purposes of the Ordinance would be effectuated by denying the request, whether the allegations in the complaint present a case of first impression for the Commission and whether the complaint related to a systemic investigation by the Commission [Rule 450].  After County has made a finding of substantial evidence, the complainant may, as a matter of right, elect to proceed before a court of general jurisdiction.  Once a complaint is filed in court pursuant to the individual right of action provision, the County will dismiss the complaint filed with it.

However, complaints filed in courts pursuant to the individual right of action have been consistently dismissed on the grounds that the Ordinance’s individual right of action is invalid and unenforceable.

Chicago

No private right of action is available in cases of discrimination brought under the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance.

RELIEF AVAILABLE

EEOC

The range of full relief available under the federal equal employment opportunity law includes reinstatement, front pay, and back pay; attorneys fees and costs; compensatory and actual damages for past pecuniary losses and non-pecuniary losses such as emotional distress; punitive and compensatory damages for future pecuniary and non-pecuniary losses for victims of intentional employment discrimination and unlawful harassment.  Congress has authorized caps on combined compensatory and punitive damages not to exceed $50,000 for employers with more than 14 and fewer than 101 employees, $100,000 for employers with more than 100 and fewer than 201 employees, $200,000 for employers with more than 200 and fewer than 501 employees, and $300,000 for employers with more than 500 employees.  The cap on compensatory and punitive damages does not apply to compensatory damages for past pecuniary losses.  Punitive damages are awarded in cases where the respondent acted with malice or reckless indifference to the complainant’s federally protected rights.  Other relief may be available as appropriate.

IDHR/IHRC

The following types of relief are available under IHRA:  back pay, benefits, attorney fees and costs; actual and compensatory damages, including emotional distress damages; injunctive relief, including hiring, reinstatement, promotion; temporary and preliminary orders to cease and desist; compliance reporting and posting of notice; and other appropriate relief to make the complainant whole [IHRA, §8A‑104].

County

Relief available under the Cook County Human Rights Ordinance includes, but is not limited to, the following:  orders to cease and desist; actual damages; injunctive relief such as hiring, reinstatement, upgrading, back pay, benefits, and provision of full and equal enjoyment of services; attorneys fees and costs; posting of notice; payment of a civil fine of not less than $100 and not more than $500 for each offense; and other appropriate relief to make the complainant whole [Ord. 93‑0‑13, Art. X (C)].  Punitive damages may be awarded in cases where the unlawful conduct is shown to be motivated by malicious intent or involves a reckless disregard for the complainant’s protected rights.

Chicago

Relief available under the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance includes, but is not limited to, the following:  out-of-pocket damages; compensatory damages; punitive damages; orders to cease and desist; injunctive relief including reinstatement, orders to make reasonable accommodations, promotion, back pay, fringe benefits, and provision of full and equal enjoyment of services; attorney’s fees and costs; other appropriate relief to make the Complainant whole [Ord. §2‑120‑510(l)]; and payment of a civil fine of not less than $100 and not more than $500 for each offense [Ord. §2‑160‑120].  Punitive damages are awarded in cases where the unlawful conduct was “willful, wanton” or where the respondent acted with reckless disregard for the complainant’s protected rights.

REFERENCE SECTION

EEOC

The following is a list of the federal employment discrimination laws enforced by the EEOC:

Title VII, The 1964 Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq. 

Equal Pay Act of 1963, 29 U.S.C. § 206(d) et seq.

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, 29 U.S.C. §621 et seq.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 43 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §791 et seq.

Civil Rights Act of 1991, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 1981

IDHR/IHRC

The following is a list of legal citations for the IHRA’s employment discrimination provisions, including various related interpretive regulations and the procedural rules of the IHRC:

Title
Citation

Illinois Human Rights Act Article 2, Employment Article 7A, IDHR Procedures for Art. 2

Article 8A, Procedures and Relief in Art. 2 cases before IHRC
775 ILCS 5/1‑101 et seq.

775 ILCS 5/2‑101 through 2‑105

775 ILCS 5/7A‑101 through 7A‑104 

775 ILCS 5/8A‑101 through 8A‑104 

Access to Information
2 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. X, §926.210

Public Contracts
44 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. X, §750

Handicap Discrimination in Employment

56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §2500

Unfavorable Military Discharge
56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §2510

Procedural Regulations, IDHR
56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §2520

Sex Discrimination in Employment

56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §5210

National Origin Discrimination in Employment

56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §5220

Procedural Rules, IHRC
56 Ill. Admin. Code, Ch. II, §5300

Orders and decisions of the IHRC from its inception to November 1990 are published in the Illinois Human Rights Commission Reporters, Volumes 1‑61.  All subsequent decisions of the Commission are available to the public at its Chicago and Springfield offices.  All Commission orders from April 1991 to the present can be accessed by the public on a computer research terminal available at its Chicago office.

REFERENCE SECTION

COUNTY

Ordinance:

The County Ordinance may be found on reserve at the Cook County Law Library.

Orders and Decisions:
Copies of all precedential Commission orders and decisions are available for inspection without charge at the Commission office and on reserve at the Cook County Law Library.  Copies of decisions and orders may be obtained from the Commission office at $.10/page plus postage upon 48 hours notice.

In addition, the decisions and orders and other Commission information will be available online in mid-2005 courtesy of the Chicago Kent College of Law at http://www.kentlaw.edu. 

CHICAGO

Ordinances:

Chicago Human Rights Ordinance, §2‑160‑010 et seq. 

Chicago Fair Housing Ordinance, §5‑08‑010 et seq.

Chicago Commission on Human Relations Enabling Ordinance, §2‑120‑480 et seq. 

All are available in the Chicago Municipal Code and at the Commission’s office without charge.

Rules and Regulations:

Substantive and procedural rules and regulations are available from the Commission without charge.

The Ordinances as well as the Rules and Regulations, selected forms including a complaint form, and other information are available on the City of Chicago web site at http://www.cityofchicago.org/humanrelations.  

Orders and Rulings:

Subject Matter Indexes of all decisions include permanent volumes and updates.  These provide summaries of all orders and rulings issued by the Commission.  All are available for inspection without charge or by subscription.  Individual decisions are available for inspection without charge and for copying at $.20/page.  48‑hour notice is needed for copies of decisions.

Westlaw includes City rulings in its database and other computer accessible locations are being explored.

AGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION

U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

Address:
Chicago District Office

500 W. Madison, Suite 2800
Chicago, IL 60661‑2511
(312) 353-2713 (voice)
(312) 353-2421 (TDD)
(800) 669-4000 (toll free)
(312) 886-1168 (Enforcement Fax)
(312) 353-8555 (Legal Fax)

Office Hours:
Intake Hours:  Monday through Friday, 8:30 - 12:00, 1:00 - 3:30 Office Hours:  Monday through Friday, 8:30 - 5:00

ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

Address:
James R. Thompson Center 

100 W. Randolph, Suite 10-100
Chicago, IL 60601
(312) 814-6200 (voice)
(312) 263-1579 (TDD)
(312) 814-1436 (Fax: Administration)
(312) 814-6251 (Fax: Charge Process)
(312) 814-2397 (Fax: Compliance)

Office Hours:
Intake Hours:  Monday through Thursday, 8:30 - 5:00 
Office Hours:  Monday through Friday, 8:30 - 5:00

COOK COUNTY COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

Address:
Cook County Administration Building

69 W. Washington Street, Suite 3040
Chicago, IL 60602
(312) 603-1100 (voice)
(312) 603-1101 (TDD)
(312) 603-9988 (Fax)

humanrights@cookcountygov.com

Office Hours:
Intake and Office Hours:  Monday through Friday, 8:30 - 5:00

CHICAGO COMMISSION ON HUMAN RELATIONS

Address:
740 N. Sedgwick

Third Floor
Chicago, IL 60610 
(312) 744-4111 (voice)
(312) 744-1088 (TDD)
(312) 744-1081 (Fax)

Office Hours:
Filing Hours:  Monday through Friday, 9:00 - 5:00

(2 copies of all filings required)
Intake Hours:  Monday through Friday, 9:00 - 5:00
(those seeking assistance with complaint drafting should arrive by 3:00 p.m.)


Where to File Employment Discrimination Claims

The following table provides general guidance.  This is not a guarantee of coverage.  Certain exceptions and limitations may apply.  You may be able to file your claim with more than one agency.  Please telephone an agency if you have questions.

Agencies to Contact
Chicago Commission on Human Relations
Cook County Commission on 

Human Rights
Illinois Department 

of Human Rights
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission

Types of Discrimination Covered
Race
Color
Religion
Sex (including sexual

harassment)
National Origin
Ancestry
Age
Marital Status
Disability
Parental Status
Sexual Orientation
Gender Identity
Source of Income
Military Discharge

Status
Limited Retaliation

Race
Color
Religion
Sex (including sexual

harassment)
National Origin
Ancestry
Age
Marital Status
Disability
Parental Status
Sexual Orientation
Source of Income
Military Discharge

Status
Housing Status
Retaliation
Aiding/Abetting
Willful Interference
Gender Identity


Race
Color
Religion
Sex
Sexual Harassment
National Origin
Ancestry
Age
Marital Status
Disability
Unfavorable Military

Discharge
Military Status
Retaliation
Aiding/Abetting
Willful Interference
Coercion
Arrest Record
Citizenship Status
Race
Color
Religion
Sex (including sexual

harassment)
National Origin
Ancestry
Age
Disability
Retaliation


Geographic Limitations
Violation occurred within the City of Chicago
Violation occurred within Cook County
Violation occurred within Illinois
Violation occurred within U.S. or at U. S. companies located outside U.S.

Time Limitations
Must file within 180 days of the alleged violation
Must file within 180 days of the alleged violation
Must file within 180 days of the alleged violation
Must file within 300 days of the alleged violation







Who Can Be Sued
Employers (no minimum number of employees)
Labor Organizations Employment Agencies Individuals
Employers (no minimum number of employees)
Labor Organizations Employment Agencies Individuals
Employers with at least 15 employees 

Employers with at least 1 employee for disability, sexual harassment, public contractors, state and local government units or apprenticeship / training programs
Labor Organizations Employment Agencies

Individual sexual harassers
Employers with at least 15 employees for Title VII and ADA claims, with at least 20 employees for ADEA, and with at least 1 employee for Equal Pay Act, state and local governments and educational institutions
Labor Organizations Apprenticeship/Training 


Programs 

Employment Agencies

Kinds of Relief Available
Make whole damages (such as back pay, lost benefits and emotional distress damages)

Punitive Damages
Other Damages (such as interest)
Injunctive Relief’ (such as reinstatement)
Fines to the City
Attorneys Fees for prevailing Complainant
Make whole damages (such as back pay, lost benefits and emotional distress damages)
Punitive Damages
Other Damages (such as interest)
Injunctive Relief (such as reinstatement), including emergency relief

Fines to the County 

Attorneys Fees for prevailing Complainant
Make whole damages (such as back pay, lost benefits and emotional distress damages)
Other Damages (such as interest)
Injunctive Relief (such as reinstatement and barring contracts with the State), including emergency relief

Attorneys Fees for prevailing Complainant
Make whole damages (such as back pay, lost benefits and reinstatement) Compensatory Damages

Punitive Damages

Injunctive Relief, including emergency relief
Attorneys Fees for prevailing Complainant

Agency Contact Information
Chicago Commission on Human Relations
740 N. Sedgwick

Third Floor

Chicago, IL 60610 
(312) 744-4111
(312) 744-1088 (TDD)
(312) 744-1081 (FAX)
Cook County Commission on Human Rights 
69 W. Washington St. Suite 3040
Chicago, IL 60602
(312) 603-1100
(312) 603-1101 (TDD)

(312) 603-9988 (FAX)

humanrights@cookcountygov.com

Illinois Department of Human Rights
James R. Thompson Center
100 W. Randolph
Suite 10-100
Chicago, IL 60601

(312) 814-6200
(312) 263-1579 (TDD)

(312) 814-1541 (FAX)
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Chicago District Office
500 W. Madison Suite 2800 Chicago, IL  60611-2511
(312) 353-2713; 2714
(312) 353-2421(TDD)
(312) 353-7355 (FAX)

Office Hours
Filing Hours:

Monday through Friday. 9:00 - 5:00

(2 copies of all filings required)
Intake Hours:
Monday through Friday 9:00 - 5:00
(those seeking assistance with complaint drafting should arrive by 3:00 p.m.)
Office Hours:
Monday through Friday 8:30 - 5:00

Intake Hours:

Monday through Friday 8:30 - 5:00
Office Hours:

Monday through Friday 8:30 - 5:00
Intake Hours:

Monday through Thursday
8:30 - 5:00
Office Hours:
Monday through Friday
8:30 - 5:00
Intake Hours:

Monday through Friday
8:30 - 12:00
1:00 - 3:30

Other Forms of Discrimination Covered
Housing
Public Accommodations 

Credit & Bonding Transactions
Housing 

Public Accommodations Credit Transactions
Housing 

Public Accommodations Financial, Credit, Real Estate Transactions 

Sexual Harassment in Higher Education


� Civil Rights Act of 1991 coverage pertains as it amends T VII and ADA.


� For all agencies, sex discrimination includes sexual harassment.  The agencies vary in their regulation of sexual harassment.  IHRA specifically defines and prohibits sexual harassment in employment [§2�102(D)].  County Ordinance’s explicit prohibition of sexual harassment in all areas which it regulates is unique.  Employer liability for sexual harassment is narrower under IHRA and Chicago’s Ordinance than under the federal laws and County’s Ordinance.  Under all these laws, employers are liable for the conduct of managerial employees.  Under Chicago’s Ordinance and IHRA, however, employers are liable for the conduct of non-managerial employees and non-employees only if the employer became aware of the conduct and failed to take “reasonable corrective action.” [Ord. §2�160�040)].  Under County Ordinance and Title VII, employers are liable for the conduct of non-managerial employees and non-employees when the employer knew or should have known of the conduct and failed to take “immediate and appropriate corrective action.”  Apart from employer liability, the liability of individuals who commit acts of sexual harassment has been recognized under IHRA [§2�102(D)], the Chicago Ordinance and the County Ordinance.


� EEOC’s prohibition of discrimination based on national origin encompasses claims of ancestry discrimination.





